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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The Barker Mill in Auburn, built in 1873, is a large and well-preserved
example of post~Civil War industrial architecture. The building is of brick
construction, 5 stories tall, with a Mansard Roof.

The facade, which faces east, is 33 bays long and features a central
projecting tower. Fenestration in the building is 12/8, except in the
tower, where it is 9/6. Each bay is set into a brick panel, giving the
large surface planes of the mill's walls a less stark appearence than other-
wise might have been. The gabled dormers of the half-story and the bracketed
cornice additionally relieve the severity commonly found in industrial
buildings. These decorative details are provided on all four sides of the
mill.

The facade tower 5 stories tall and square in plan, also contains
decorative elements. In the second story is a large, arched window with
granite Keystone, while the third and fourth-story windows are labelled and
also feature granite keystones. The fifth-story of the tower contains a pair
of circular windows in each side. Above these, ornamental brick mimics
dentils. A handsome mansard roofed sixth tower floor with cresting has
unfortunately been Tost.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Architecturally, the Barker Mill is one of the most well proportioned of
the relatively few mansard roofed mills in Maine. Although, by their very
nature, late 19th century textile mills tended to be starkly simple and rather
drab in appearance, this particular structure, even with the loss of the top
floor of the tower, possesses an unusual stylistic dignity and extensive
decorative detail.

The Barker Mill was designed by Charles F. Douglas whose brief but
meteoric career(see C. F. Douglas House - nomination pending) included such
outstanding works as the impressive Continental Mill in Lewiston, the Somerset
County Courthouse in Skowhegan and the Glover House in Rockland.

This mi11 was, for a long time, Auburn's one major venture in the textile
industry. It was the enterprise that gave the New Auburn section its favorable
start as a business center.

The undertaking began in 1870, with the acquisition of a large area of
land along the Little Androscoggin River for a considerable distance up stream
from its confluence with the Big Androscoggin. The purpose of the group of
businessmen, who called themselves the Little Androscoggin Water Power Company,
was to develop a water power for a textile mill. This purchase of land with
right to build a power dam led not only to the dam and a five-story mill, but
to the sale of home building lots to the people who flocked into the area.

The dam was completed in 1872; the mill in 1873; and "Barker Mill", so
named in honor of C. I. Barker, a prominent textile executive who bacame its
first directing agent, went into operation in 1874. It engaged in the manu-
facture of cotton shirtings and sheetings, and was active for many years.

In 1888, it employed 275 persons and produced four million yards of goods.
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The Farwell Mill is a sprawling former industrial complex prominently
sited on the west bank of the Sabattus River in the middle of Lisbon. It
is comprised of a three-story L-shaped brick block the long leg of which
is largely obscured by mid twentieth century brick and concrete additions.
Wings of varying height telescope from the mill's south elevation and a
singularly unique detached brick gas house stands off from the north end.

When constructed in 1873 Farwell Mill consisted of the L-shaped brick
block only. Contemporary descriptions note that the long component was 312
feet 1n length and 52 feet in width. Square towers which rose above the
shallow gable roof were centrally located on both the front (west) and east
elevations. The west stair tower appears to have been somewhat larger than
the one on the rear which contained lavatories. Later documentary photo-
graphs do in fact show a four-story west tower and a smaller three-story
unit on the east, river side. The towers equally divided each elevation
into two sections the east side of which was eighteen bays in width. Flat
granite lintels and sills framed the twelve-over-twelve double hung sash
windows and a simple corbeled cornice carried around the building. The
north gable end was symmetrically divided into four bays.

At the south end of this main component is the largely intact and
unobscured three-story ell. 1Its four-bay west gable end contains a four-
story tower at the southwest corner that has coupled Italianate style
round arched windows in the upper story and a shallow hipped roof. Both
its north and south elevations are fourteen bays wide and contain a large
share of their original double hung sash windows. The east end of the ell
meets the recessed eight bay endwall of the original three-story power

plant block.

Throughout its industrial life the mill, whose main section remains
relatively sound, has undergone a number of changes and expansions to its
original configuration. 1In 1880 the .boilers were relocated from their
original location in the main structure to a detached boiler house built
near the south elevation. This building was subsequently enlarged sometime
prior to 1906 and again after 1922. Documentary plans also show that the
original interior smoke stack was removed and replaced by a stack located
at the northeast corner of the boiler house. Whether the present square
tapered stack dates to this changeover or is a later structure entirely
is not certain. The existing, somewhat deteriorated building exhibits an
asymmetrical fenestration pattern whose openings, except for three windows
on the west wall, have been infilled.

See continuation sheet
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Before the turn of the century a one-story, eleven-bay brick addition
was made to the north end of the mill increasing the overall length to 402
feet. By 1906 this section had been raised to a full three stories which
met the height of the original block, matched its fenestration pattern and
concluded the historic enlargement at this end of the mill.

Further additions were made to the mill prior to 1906. 1Included in
this building program was the construction of a two-story picker house
between the southwest corner of the ell and the original two-story detached
cotton house. By this date the cotton house had been converted to picker
and cloth rooms with the addition of large double hung sash windows on both
the east and west elevations. A new one-story cotton house (shown on Sanborn
maps as Cotton House #1) was added to the south end of the original cotton
warehouse at this time.

Prior to 1922 another cotton house (Cotton House #2) was added to the
east side of the pre 1906 structure. This nearly rectangular shallow gable
roofed brick building, unlike its earlier counterpart, survives largely
unaltered but in an advanced state of deterioration. 1Its three short in-
terior floor divisions are supported by large square timbers, and the east
and north walls are punctuated by small square windows. In addition to the
construction of the cotton houses a square elevator shaft was built onto
the principal mill block at the junction of the ell on the west elevation,
and a wide one-story structure was constructed between the south ell and
the west stair tower.

Farwell Mill achieved its present appearance after 1937 when the
structure was converted for the manufacture of vinyl tile flooring and
subsequently linoleum. In 1948 a brick addition with glass block windows
was made to the east, river side resulting in the removal of the lavatory
tower. By the early 1950's a second three-story block had been appended to
the east elevation as well as immense four-story concrete "shells" on both
the east and west facades. These changes virtually concealed the original
three-story brick elevations of this section of the mill, and resulted in
the removal of the west stair tower. Despite the addition of these struc-
tures, which nearly tripled the available floor space, the original exterior
elevations suffered largely reversible alterations, principally the removal
of windows and the infill of their openings. Two exceptions to this pattern
are the large openings - which were made at opposing locations on the
east and west walls, ten bays north of the ell. These alterations caused
the removal of two-story six-bay units from both walls. The circa 1948
additions also included the construction of the long, low concrete block
buildings to the south end of Cotton House #2.

The vast interior of the original mill building, principally the south

ell, retains many of its wooden load bearing columns. Structural rein-
forcements were added to the main block to accommodate the increased loads

See continuation sheet
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resulting from the linolem operations. Although many of the original posts
were removed at this time, a number of them do survive here. The tower at
the southeast corner contains a spiral stair and the original cotton house

features wooden roof trusses.

There are three surviving detached buildings on the site. The most
significant of these is the original one-story gas works that stands off
of the north end of the main mill complex. Facing east, the handsome and
unusual gasometer building features a paneled three-bay gable end with
corbeled arches and a wide cornice. The original window and center door
openings have been altered but the paneled three-bay side elevations are
unchanged. A nearly flat roofed turn-of-the-century brick addition connects
the main block to the originally detached but similarly detailed retort
building and its tapered chimney. Both of these structures were originally
equipped with ridge ventilators. The interior of the large block retains
its handsome wooden roof trusses similar to those in the original cotton

house.

The remaining detached buildings include a one-story frame structure
sheathed in clapboards that is located west of the main mill block and a
mid twentieth century two-story office block. The latter replaces an earlier
frame building which was the original office. The date of construction and
original function of the other frame building is not positively known. The
character of the bracketed eaves suggests a late nineteenth century date
and it appears to have been standing on this location by 1906.



